
AGENDA 
Community Redevelopment Area Advisory Board 

Thursday, April 4, 2019   |    3:00 PM – 5:00 PM 
City Commission Conference Room, City Hall 

A. Financial Update & Project Tracker*

B. Housekeeping
1. FY 2018 Financial Statements- Independent Audit

C. Action Items
1. Old Business

i. Meeting Minutes March 7, 2019 (Pg. 13-17)
2. New Business

i. The Joinery Funding Request (Pg. 18)
ii. 912 & 920 N. Vermont Ave. (Pg. 19-20)
iii. Residential Incentives Transition (Pg. 21-26)

D. Discussion Items
1. Update- Mirrorton

E. Save The Date
1. April 9th, 2019 - Boards and Committees Annual Social 5:00pm, 

Joker Marchant Stadium (Free for attendee + one guest)
2. Coming Soon! – Yard on Mass Groundbreaking

F. Announcements
1. CRA Annual Report Available Online

G. Public Comments

H. Adjourn 

 For Information 

NEXT REGULAR MEETING: 
Thursday, May 2 2019 3:00 - 5:00 PM – City Commission Conference Room 

1



$70,432

$594,944

$1,716,852

Downtown Fund

Available

Expenses

Encumbrances

$383,686

$55,989

$626,866

Dixieland Fund

Available

Expenses

Encumbrances

Estimated Income in FY 2020 $279,000

$138,604

$2,600,843

$4,328,937

Midtown Fund

Available

Expenses

Encumbrances

Estimated Income in FY 2020 $3,345,000

* Estimated Income from Lincoln Square Home Sales $2,619,000

Estimated Income in FY 2020 $1,554,000

FY 2019
April 4, 2019 2



STATUS KEY
RISKS / ROADBLOCKS

POTENTIAL RISKS
ON TRACK

Project Status Phase Funding Allocated Notes

Food Truck 
Park ON TRACK Pre-Construction $250,000.00 Site Plan Approved; Building 80%

Lincoln Square ON TRACK Construction $4,268,086.00
Phase I Complete
Phase II Complete
Phase III-IV Underway 40%

114 E. Parker POTENTIAL RISKS Design $350,000.00 Site and Building Construction Documents at 90%

Lake Parker Art 
Path ON TRACK Pre-Bid $730,000.00 Bid in July; PCBS Review

Five Points 
Roundabout ON TRACK Pre-Construction $175,000.00 Public Meeting in April

Kettles Ave 
Sidewalk ON TRACK Construction $150,000.00 Complete

Tapatios POTENTIAL RISKS Construction $340,000.00 Underway; Site Work

Mirrorton ON TRACK Under Contract $970,000.00 Site Plan Approved; Building 95%

Providence Rd ON TRACK Feasibility Study $1,100,000.00

Second Floor 
Activation ON TRACK Research Draft

PROJECT PROGRESSION REPORT

3



STATUS KEY
RISKS / ROADBLOCKS

POTENTIAL RISKS
ON TRACK

Grants/Programs Status Grant Awards to Date Notes

Alley Vacating ON TRACK 1 Boundaries located between Florida and Kettles 
Avenue and 9th and 10th Street

Affordable 
Housing 

Partnerships
ON TRACK 3

•Providence Reserve Seniors
 (Fall Groundbreaking)- 193 Units 
• Midtown Lofts- 70+ Units

Builder's Line of 
Credit ON TRACK 1 703 W 5th Street; Underway 30%

Design 
Assistance ON TRACK 4 Active Sites •938 E. Main Street •1212 E. Main Street 

•905 E. Rose Street 

Down Payment 
Assistance RISKS / ROADBLOCKS 17 All Funding Allocated

Façade and Site ON TRACK 6 2 Proposals Pending

Fix-It Up RISKS / ROADBLOCKS 8 All Funding Allocated
Active Sites •313 S. Lake Avenue •1334 Kettles Ave

Food Related ON TRACK 0

Infill- New 
Construction RISKS / ROADBLOCKS 1 Housing Transfer

Infill Adaptive 
Reuse ON TRACK 7 3 Proposals Pending

Murals / 
Tapestries ON TRACK 2 1 Remaining Grant Award; Boring Business 

Systems/Pending Façade Grant Improvements

PROGRAM PROGRESSION REPORT

4



City of Lakeland Type Qtr Activity 641
Internal Loan Fund Loan Title LCRA Property Acquistion Term 66
Loan Details Original Amount $8,497,470.07 Rate 5.00% 4.00%
30-Sep-18 Issue Date 31-Mar-05 Fund 405

Maturity Date 31-Dec-32 Ctr/Project 006805
Amortization Date 31-Mar-05 Account 2814/1790

Level DS? Yes
100.00% 0.00%

Effective 
Date

Beginning 
Balance Cash Interest Accrual Grant Repayment

Operating 
Cash

Developer 
Proceeds Interest

Ending 
Balance Principal Interest Total

Downtown 
CRA Principal

Downtown 
CRA Interest

Midtown CRA 
Principal

Midtown CRA 
Interest

Combined 
Debt 

31-Dec-18 4,452,342.70 55,476.57 44,523.43 4,396,866.13 100,000.00 293,750.00
31-Mar-19 4,396,866.13 56,031.34 43,968.66 4,340,834.79 100,000.00 293,750.00
30-Jun-19 4,340,834.79 56,591.65 43,408.35 4,284,243.14 100,000.00 293,750.00
30-Sep-19 4,284,243.14 57,157.57 42,842.43 4,227,085.57 FY19 225,257.13 174,742.87 400,000.00 100,000.00 293,750.00
31-Dec-19 4,227,085.57 57,729.14 42,270.86 4,169,356.43 100,000.00 275,000.00
31-Mar-20 4,169,356.43 58,306.44 41,693.56 4,111,049.99 100,000.00 275,000.00
30-Jun-20 4,111,049.99 58,889.50 41,110.50 4,052,160.49 100,000.00 275,000.00
30-Sep-20 4,052,160.49 59,478.40 40,521.60 3,992,682.09 FY20 234,403.48 165,596.52 400,000.00 100,000.00 275,000.00
31-Dec-20 3,992,682.09 60,073.18 39,926.82 3,932,608.91 100,000.00 281,250.00
31-Mar-21 3,932,608.91 60,673.91 39,326.09 3,871,935.00 100,000.00 281,250.00
30-Jun-21 3,871,935.00 61,280.65 38,719.35 3,810,654.35 100,000.00 281,250.00
30-Sep-21 3,810,654.35 61,893.46 38,106.54 3,748,760.89 FY21 243,921.20 156,078.80 400,000.00 100,000.00 281,250.00
31-Dec-21 3,748,760.89 62,512.39 37,487.61 3,686,248.50 100,000.00 293,750.00
31-Mar-22 3,686,248.50 63,137.51 36,862.49 3,623,110.99 100,000.00 293,750.00
30-Jun-22 3,623,110.99 63,768.89 36,231.11 3,559,342.10 100,000.00 293,750.00
30-Sep-22 3,559,342.10 64,406.58 35,593.42 3,494,935.52 FY22 253,825.37 146,174.63 400,000.00 100,000.00 293,750.00
31-Dec-22 3,494,935.52 65,050.64 34,949.36 3,429,884.88 100,000.00 275,000.00
31-Mar-23 3,429,884.88 65,701.15 34,298.85 3,364,183.73 100,000.00 275,000.00
30-Jun-23 3,364,183.73 66,358.16 33,641.84 3,297,825.57 100,000.00 275,000.00
30-Sep-23 3,297,825.57 67,021.74 32,978.26 3,230,803.83 FY23 264,131.69 135,868.31 400,000.00 100,000.00 275,000.00
31-Dec-23 3,230,803.83 67,691.96 32,308.04 3,163,111.87
31-Mar-24 3,163,111.87 68,368.88 31,631.12 3,094,742.99
30-Jun-24 3,094,742.99 69,052.57 30,947.43 3,025,690.42
30-Sep-24 3,025,690.42 69,743.10 30,256.90 2,955,947.32 FY24 274,856.51 125,143.49 400,000.00
31-Dec-24 2,955,947.32 70,440.53 29,559.47 2,885,506.79 Loan
31-Mar-25 2,885,506.79 71,144.93 28,855.07 2,814,361.86 Disbursements Principal Interest Total
30-Jun-25 2,814,361.86 71,856.38 28,143.62 2,742,505.48 2,005.00 7,850,000.00 24,923.00 175,077.00 200,000.00
30-Sep-25 2,742,505.48 72,574.95 27,425.05 2,669,930.53 FY25 286,016.79 113,983.21 400,000.00 2,006.00 557,549.65 136,009.74 388,449.64 524,459.38
31-Dec-25 2,669,930.53 73,300.69 26,699.31 2,596,629.84 2,007.00 0.00 0.00 412,331.00 412,331.00
31-Mar-26 2,596,629.84 74,033.70 25,966.30 2,522,596.14 2,008.00 0.00 419,836.41 436,893.35 856,729.76
30-Jun-26 2,522,596.14 74,774.04 25,225.96 2,447,822.10 2,009.00 0.00 454,581.06 382,889.94 837,471.00
30-Sep-26 2,447,822.10 75,521.78 24,478.22 2,372,300.32 FY26 297,630.21 102,369.79 400,000.00 2,010.00 0.00 317,288.95 362,711.05 680,000.00
31-Dec-26 2,372,300.32 76,277.00 23,723.00 2,296,023.32 2,011.00 0.00 333,453.33 346,546.67 680,000.00
31-Mar-27 2,296,023.32 77,039.77 22,960.23 2,218,983.55 2,012.00 0.00 349,509.20 330,490.80 680,000.00
30-Jun-27 2,218,983.55 77,810.16 22,189.84 2,141,173.39 2,013.00 0.00 164,462.38 315,537.62 480,000.00
30-Sep-27 2,141,173.39 78,588.27 21,411.73 2,062,585.12 FY27 309,715.20 90,284.80 400,000.00 2,014.00 0.00 376,625.64 303,374.36 680,000.00
31-Dec-27 2,062,585.12 79,374.15 20,625.85 1,983,210.97 2,015.00 0.00 395,812.96 284,187.04 680,000.00
31-Mar-28 1,983,210.97 80,167.89 19,832.11 1,903,043.08 2,016.00 0.00 557,882.92 262,117.08 820,000.00
30-Jun-28 1,903,043.08 80,969.57 19,030.43 1,822,073.51 2,017.00 0.00 851,968.66 228,031.34 1080000.00
30-Sep-28 1,822,073.51 81,779.26 18,220.74 1,740,294.25 FY28 322,290.87 77,709.13 400,000.00 2,018.00 0.00 936,129.40 183,870.60 1120000.00
31-Dec-28 1,740,294.25 82,597.06 17,402.94 1,657,697.19 2,019.00 0.00 983,820.82 136,179.18 1120000.00
31-Mar-29 1,657,697.19 83,423.03 16,576.97 1,574,274.16 2,020.00 0.00 1,033,681.79 86,318.21 1120000.00
30-Jun-29 1,574,274.16 84,257.26 15,742.74 1,490,016.90 2,021.00 0.00 1,071,319.26 33,680.74 1105000.00
30-Sep-29 1,490,016.90 85,099.83 14,900.17 1,404,917.07 FY29 335,377.18 64,622.82 400,000.00 Total 8,407,549.65 8,407,305.52 4,668,685.62 13075991.14
31-Dec-29 1,404,917.07 85,950.83 14,049.17 1,318,966.24
31-Mar-30 1,318,966.24 86,810.34 13,189.66 1,232,155.90
30-Jun-30 1,232,155.90 87,678.44 12,321.56 1,144,477.46
30-Sep-30 1,144,477.46 88,555.23 11,444.77 1,055,922.23 FY30 348,994.84 51,005.16 400,000.00
31-Dec-30 1,055,922.23 89,440.78 10,559.22 966,481.45
31-Mar-31 966,481.45 90,335.19 9,664.81 876,146.26
30-Jun-31 876,146.26 91,238.54 8,761.46 784,907.72
30-Sep-31 784,907.72 92,150.92 7,849.08 692,756.80 FY31 363,165.43 36,834.57 400,000.00
31-Dec-31 692,756.80 93,072.43 6,927.57 599,684.37
31-Mar-32 599,684.37 94,003.16 5,996.84 505,681.21
30-Jun-32 505,681.21 94,943.19 5,056.81 410,738.02
30-Sep-32 410,738.02 95,892.62 4,107.38 314,845.40 FY32 377,911.40 22,088.60 400,000.00
31-Dec-32 314,845.40 314,845.40 3,148.45 0.00

FY33 314,845.40 3,148.45 317,993.85

8,497,470.07 5,775,890.86

Loans Issued Loan Repayments

Loan Repayment

5



City of Lakeland Type Qtr Activity 641
Internal Loan Fund Loan Title LCRA Property Acquistion Term 66
Loan Details Original Amount $8,497,470.07 Rate 5.00% 4.00%
30-Sep-18 Issue Date 31-Mar-05 Fund 405

Maturity Date 30-Sep-24 Ctr/Project 006805
Amortization Date 31-Mar-05 Account 2814/1790

Level DS? Yes
100.00% 0.00%

Effective 
Date

Beginning 
Balance Cash Interest Accrual Grant Repayment

Operating 
Cash

Developer 
Proceeds Interest

Ending 
Balance Principal Interest Total

Downtown 
CRA Principal

Downtown 
CRA Interest

Midtown CRA 
Principal

Midtown CRA 
Interest

Combined 
Debt 

31-Dec-18 4,452,342.70 55,476.57 44,523.43 4,396,866.13 100,000.00 293,750.00
31-Mar-19 4,396,866.13 2,500,000.00 43,968.66 1,896,866.13 2,543,968.66 293,750.00
30-Jun-19 1,896,866.13 81,031.34 18,968.66 1,815,834.79 100,000.00 293,750.00
30-Sep-19 1,815,834.79 81,841.65 18,158.35 1,733,993.14 FY19 2,718,349.56 125,619.10 2,843,968.66 100,000.00 293,750.00
31-Dec-19 1,733,993.14 82,660.07 17,339.93 1,651,333.07 100,000.00 275,000.00
31-Mar-20 1,651,333.07 83,486.67 16,513.33 1,567,846.40 100,000.00 275,000.00
30-Jun-20 1,567,846.40 84,321.54 15,678.46 1,483,524.86 100,000.00 275,000.00
30-Sep-20 1,483,524.86 85,164.75 14,835.25 1,398,360.11 FY20 335,633.03 64,366.97 400,000.00 100,000.00 275,000.00
31-Dec-20 1,398,360.11 86,016.40 13,983.60 1,312,343.71 100,000.00 281,250.00
31-Mar-21 1,312,343.71 86,876.56 13,123.44 1,225,467.15 100,000.00 281,250.00
30-Jun-21 1,225,467.15 87,745.33 12,254.67 1,137,721.82 100,000.00 281,250.00
30-Sep-21 1,137,721.82 88,622.78 11,377.22 1,049,099.04 FY21 349,261.07 50,738.93 400,000.00 100,000.00 281,250.00
31-Dec-21 1,049,099.04 89,509.01 10,490.99 959,590.03 100,000.00 293,750.00
31-Mar-22 959,590.03 90,404.10 9,595.90 869,185.93 100,000.00 293,750.00
30-Jun-22 869,185.93 91,308.14 8,691.86 777,877.79 100,000.00 293,750.00
30-Sep-22 777,877.79 92,221.22 7,778.78 685,656.57 FY22 363,442.47 36,557.53 400,000.00 100,000.00 293,750.00
31-Dec-22 685,656.57 93,143.43 6,856.57 592,513.14 100,000.00 275,000.00
31-Mar-23 592,513.14 94,074.87 5,925.13 498,438.27 100,000.00 275,000.00
30-Jun-23 498,438.27 95,015.62 4,984.38 403,422.65 100,000.00 275,000.00
30-Sep-23 403,422.65 95,965.77 4,034.23 307,456.88 FY23 378,199.69 21,800.31 400,000.00 100,000.00 275,000.00
31-Dec-23 307,456.88 96,925.43 3,074.57 210,531.45
31-Mar-24 210,531.45 97,894.69 2,105.31 112,636.76
30-Jun-24 112,636.76 98,873.63 1,126.37 13,763.13
30-Sep-24 13,763.13 13,763.13 137.63 (0.00) FY24 307,456.88 6,443.88 313,900.76

Total Principal 8,497,470.07 4,615,766.43 Total Interest
Current Total Principal 8,497,470.07 5,775,890.86 Current Total Interest

1,160,124.43 Future Interest Eliminated

Loans Issued Loan Repayments

6



City of Lakeland Type Qtr Activity 641
Internal Loan Fund Loan Title LCRA Property Acquistion Term 66
Loan Details Original Amount $8,497,470.07 Rate 5.00% 4.00%
30-Sep-18 Issue Date 31-Mar-05 Fund 405

Maturity Date 30-Sep-21 Ctr/Project 006805
Amortization Date 31-Mar-05 Account 2814/1790

Level DS? Yes
100.00% 0.00%

Effective 
Date

Beginning 
Balance Cash Interest Accrual Grant Repayment

Operating 
Cash

Developer 
Proceeds Interest

Ending 
Balance Principal Interest Total

Downtown 
CRA Principal

Downtown 
CRA Interest

Midtown CRA 
Principal

Midtown CRA 
Interest

Combined 
Debt 

31-Dec-18 4,452,342.70 155,476.57 44,523.43 4,296,866.13 200,000.00 293,750.00
31-Mar-19 4,296,866.13 2,500,000.00 42,968.66 1,796,866.13 2,542,968.66 293,750.00
30-Jun-19 1,796,866.13 182,031.34 17,968.66 1,614,834.79 200,000.00 293,750.00
30-Sep-19 1,614,834.79 183,851.65 16,148.35 1,430,983.14 FY19 3,021,359.56 121,609.10 3,142,968.66 200,000.00 293,750.00
31-Dec-19 1,430,983.14 185,690.17 14,309.83 1,245,292.97 200,000.00 275,000.00
31-Mar-20 1,245,292.97 187,547.07 12,452.93 1,057,745.90 200,000.00 275,000.00
30-Jun-20 1,057,745.90 189,422.54 10,577.46 868,323.36 200,000.00 275,000.00
30-Sep-20 868,323.36 191,316.77 8,683.23 677,006.59 FY20 753,976.55 46,023.45 800,000.00 200,000.00 275,000.00
31-Dec-20 677,006.59 193,229.93 6,770.07 483,776.66 200,000.00 281,250.00
31-Mar-21 483,776.66 195,162.23 4,837.77 288,614.43 200,000.00 281,250.00
30-Jun-21 288,614.43 197,113.86 2,886.14 91,500.57 200,000.00 281,250.00
30-Sep-21 91,500.57 91,500.57 915.01 (0.00) FY21 677,006.59 15,408.99 692,415.58 92,415.58 281,250.00

Total Principal 8,497,470.07 4,493,281.25 Total Interest
Current Total Principal 8,497,470.07 5,775,890.86 Current Total Interest

1,282,609.61 Future Interest Eliminated

Loans Issued Loan Repayments

7



8



9



10



11



12



 

 

Community Redevelopment Area Advisory Board 
Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, March 7th, 2019 
3:00 – 5:00 PM 
City Commission Conference Room, City Hall 
 
Attendance 
Board Members: Ben Mundy (Chair), Pastor Edward Lake (Vice-Chair), Zelda Abram, Dean Boring, Harry 

Bryant, Brandon Eady, Brian Goding,, Commissioner Stephanie Madden, Cory Petcoff and 
Cliff Wiley 

 

Absent: Frank Lansford 
 

Staff: Alis Drumgo, Valerie Ferrell, D’Ariel Reed, and Jonathan Rodriguez  
 

Guests: Brooke Agnini (Prestige WWG), Steve Boyington (WMB-ROI), Timothy Campbell (CCLM Law), 
Matthew Clark (Broadway Realty), James Edwards (Coldwell Banker), Gregory Fancelli (Prestige 
WWG), Barry Friedman (LkldNow), Annie Gibson (Housing), Allison Guinn (Press), Carole 
Philipson, Commissioner Bill Read, Brian Rewis (Assistant Director Community & Economic 
Development), Officer Rick Taylor (LPD) and Julie Townsend (LDDA) 

Packets 
 Meeting Minutes dated January 3rd, 2019 
 Financial Update 
 Project Progression Report 
 Memo- Watson Clinic Land Swap 
 Memo- Oak Street Parking Lot 
 Memo- North Massachusetts Ave. Property 
 Branmorty Property 

 
Housekeeping 
 
Action Items – Old Business 

 
Meeting Minutes dated January 3rd, 2019  
Cory Petcoff moved approval of the minutes. Brian Goding seconded the motion which passed unanimously. 
 
Financial Update 
Ben Mundy noted the inclusion of the update for informational purposes. 
 
Action Items – New Business 
 
Watson Clinic Land Swap 
The CRA owns six parcels comprising 1.08 acres. They are the remaining parcels of the twenty (20) acquired 
over a five-year period to assemble land for the future expansion of the Medical District. Three parcels were 
acquired in 2010, and three were acquired in a land swap with Lakeland Regional Health (LRH) in 2013. The 
property is just to the North of Watson Clinic (The Clinic) and LRH. In 2017, the CRA was approached by a 
private developer for the acquisition of several properties in the West Lane area to be utilized for the 
construction of single family residences. At the time, Commissioner Jim Malless sat on the Advisory Board and 
recommended no sale take place without first gauging the interest of the two medical entities. The Board voted 
to withhold further action. 

13



 

 

 
In October 2018, the CRA was approached simultaneously by representatives of both the Clinic (Timothy 
Campbell of Clark, Campbell, Lancaster & Munson, P.A) and LRH (Bart Allen, Peterson & Myers, P.A.). At a 
joint meeting, both parties expressed the desire to move forward with a proposal to modify land uses, rezone 
for future development and vacate easements within the boundaries of Morrell Dr., Florida Avenue, E. 
Crawford Ave. and Parkview Pl. Furthermore, both parties requested a summary of CRA acquisition and 
carrying costs for the properties as it has been customary to recapture those costs in a transaction. 
 
CRA Staff compiled the requested documentation, and provided to Mr. Campbell and Mr. Allen. Subsequent 
meetings with Planning Staff confirmed the desired land use changes and a land transaction would benefit the 
furtherance of the Medical District. 
 
Since the aforementioned meeting, Mr. Campbell has submitted applications for the rezoning, land use 
modifications and easement vacates with LRH and the CRA signing off in a tri-party agreement. At the 2.19.19 
Planning & Zoning Board meeting, the recommendations were adopted unanimously. 
 
Because the expected exchange is the same acreage, The Clinic proposes that no consideration be required for 
the exchange. The Clinic agrees to pay any and all costs necessary to prepare legal descriptions, order title work, 
draft deeds and closing documents, issue title insurance and record the executed deeds in public records. 
 
Staff has reviewed the request and seeks recommendation for support of the land exchange for the following 
reasons: 
 
• The Redevelopment Plan has called for this type of development since adoption of the Midtown Plan in 2001 
which states: 
• “The Lakeland Hills Medical Center hosts the Lakeland Regional Medical Center and Watson Clinic. The 
District is about 140 acres in size. The district is already the location for hospital and clinic parking, officers, 
specialty clinics and other support activities. The cooperation of these two medical centers on issues of mutual 
interest, such as parking, storm water management, security and training, could create an activity center that 
work to the advantage of the City and both organizations. 
• A 2004 corridor study by Wallis Murphey Boyington Architects also highlighted the benefits of supporting 
the expansion of the area as a medical campus. 
The transaction allows both medical entities to masterplan for the further development of the Medical District. 
• The transaction is of equal size and presumable value. 
• The transaction allows for the Clinic to square off its property ownership of all properties north of the Morrell 
Drive & West Lane intersection. 
• The transaction leaves only the CRA and LRH property owners south of the intersection and leaves the CRA 
to negotiate directly with LRH in a future deal. 
 
With the Board’s approval, Staff will publish disposition of the property per statute, then proceed to The City 
of Lakeland Real Estate Committee for final approval. 
 
Cory Petcoff moved approval of Staff’s recommendation. Cliff Wiley seconded the motion which passed 
unanimously.  
 
Oak Street Parking Lot 
The CRA owns 0 N. Kentucky Ave, the Oak Street Parking Lot, comprising 1.49 acres. The lot encompasses 
a full city block and is situated in an ideal location about a block off both the Massachusetts Avenue corridor 
to the East and the Florida Avenue corridor to the West. In 2015, the CRA explored issuing request for 
qualifications (RFQs) for the development site but opted to expand the parking instead. Today, the CRA 
operates the lot as a public parking facility with about 150 spaces of which approximately 125 are leasable. The 
January account receivables report shows the lot at approximately 95% capacity with income of almost $4,200. 

14



 

 

The current operating expenses are $16,000 annually which covers enforcement staff time and management of 
the leases. The currently assessed value is $379,358. 
 
In December 2018, the CRA was approached by a private developer with interest in developing the site as 
“dense urban multi-family residential project with potential of incorporating some mixed-use elements”. The 
area, considered part of the North Downtown sub-district, was identified within the downtown redevelopment 
plan update as an ideal area for lofts, midrise and mixed-use live/work opportunity. 
 
Staff met with Community & Economic Development Planning Staff, and the following feedback was obtained: 
 
• Consider a minimum density and height desired from any development. 
• The project should meet parking demand generated by the proposed development. 
• Any development including residential shall have 20% of the units set aside affordable housing for a minimum 
period of 15 years. 
• The development team should show proof of the project’s economic sustainability with amount of required 
public contributions being a factor of consideration. 
• Any development agreement should include per unit sale price for any residential component.  
 
Staff recommended the Board solicit request for qualifications (RFQs) via the City’s purchasing procurement 
process with the intent of entering an agreement with the most qualified and responsive applicant. With the 
Board’s approval, Staff will draft RFQ criteria for review, recommend a selection committee and issue 
disposition per Florida Statute, Chapter 163. 
 
Discussion ensued.  
 
Cory Petcoff moved approval of Staff’s recommendation. Dean Boring seconded the motion which passed 9-
1.  
 
North Massachusetts Ave Property 
The CRA owns 313 N. Massachusetts Ave. The lot encompasses about a quarter of a city block consisting of 
approximately 0.40 acres. The site is situated in an ideal location in the north downtown area along the 
Massachusetts Avenue corridor, and was recently identified as a key catalyst site in the Downtown Lakeland 
Vision. The property is bounded by Oak Street to the north, Greyhound station to the south and single family 
and multiplex to the east. The CRA purchased the property in 2006 for $560,000, subsequently demolishing 
the structures. 
 
In November 2018, the CRA was approached by a private developer with interest in developing the site in a 
three-phased approach. The project proposed is mixed-use development including retail, flex office/residential 
and residential uses. 
 
Staff met with Community & Economic Development Planning Staff, and the following feedback was obtained: 
 
• Projects allowing for more commercial uses should get preferential consideration. 
• Any development including residential shall have 20% of the units set aside affordable housing for a period 
of 15 years. 
• The project should meet parking demand generated by the proposed development. 
• The development team should show proof of the project’s economic sustainability with amount of required 
public contributions being a factor of consideration. 
• Any development agreement should include per unit sale price for any residential component. 
• Disjointed ownership will prevent a quality project from moving forward without resolution. 
• Storm water challenges will persist without an infrastructure project to alleviate the load.  
 

15



 

 

With the aforementioned information, CRA Staff recommends the Board hold on issuing the request for 
qualifications (RFQs) until the majority of the adjacent properties are consolidated under one ownership, and 
public infrastructure is able to accommodate the proposed development. 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Cory Petcoff moved to dispose of the property. Dean Boring seconded the motion which passed unanimously.  
 
Staff will collect and review proposals and present to the Board for recommendation at the May meeting. 
 
Branmorty Property 
Several properties have become available for purchase near Mass Market posing an opportunity for a large-
scale, future project to build upon the current momentum. The ownership is held by Frank Kendrick under 
pseudonyms, Branmorty Properties and 209 Myrtle LLC. Mr. Kendrick owns several parcels in the area both 
commercial and residential, some directly in proximity to the area Staff identified as the Mass Market small area 
study and others on the West side of the South Florida corridor. Only properties within the study area, primarily 
along the Parker Street corridor, are being considered at this time. Mr. Kendrick has submitted his asking price 
for the properties which staff countered based on 120% of Property Appraiser’s record of just market value. 
Negotiations have landed on the asking price below: 
 

 
 
Staff worked with Mrs. Patricia Hendler to analyze current real estate conditions as well as residential leases of 
the two occupied parcels on E Parker Street. There are some concerns with lease terms and code compliance 
of the residential rentals given the space operates like a rooming house. However, there are a total of 10 tenants 
yielding approximately $4,400 in rental income monthly. All leases have a 30-day cancellation clause, and in 
case of relocation or renewals, lease rates are stated as month-to-month. 
 
Staff inspected the property and found an environment that would expose the organization to potential high 
cost renovations and/or issues with relocating tenants in order to vacate due to subpar living conditions. 
However, the continued land assemblage allows the opportunity for a major project and leverage to attract a 
developer to invest in a new mixed-use development. The goals for the acquisition would be to compliment 
the Mass Market investment and increase the sustainability for continued private investment in the area. 
Therefore, Staff recommended approval to proceed with purchase contract with Mr. Frank Kendrick for three 
parcels as identified herein for the asking price of $156,045, provided a lengthy due diligence, with closing 
contingent upon the current owner vacating the property and relocating existing tenants as outlined accordingly 
by the CRA’s land use attorney. 
 
Cliff Wiley moved to approve the purchase price of $156,045 to be placed in escrow and disbursed once all 
tenants have been vacated by the owner. Eddie Lake seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 
A proxy vote was administered via email to revise the Board’s original decision due to a typo in the memo 
provided by Staff. A majority of favorable votes were received to approve payment of $20,000 for the purchase 
of the 209 Myrtle Street property, bringing the total purchase price to $159,799.40. 
 
 
 

Location 120% of Just Market Value Asking Price

211‐213E Parker St. 59,786.40$                                   59,800.00$                                  

207‐209 E. Parker St. 39,794.40$                                   80,000.00$                                  

209 Myrtle St 16,245.60$                                   16,245.00$                                  

115,826.40$                                 156,045.00$                                

16



 

 

Discussion Items  
HUD is requesting an adjustment to the Mirrorton development agreement which currently states 306 units 
will be built. As HUD’s plans call for 305 units, the agreement will be revised to reflect that at the next City 
Commission meeting. Closing is expected to take place within the next 60 days.  
 
Construction plans for 114 E. Parker St. are about 90% complete. Once fulfilled, Staff will put them out for 
Bid and update the Board accordingly. 
 
The Yard on Mass is close to submitting building permits and are planning a groundbreaking event soon after. 
Staff will update the Board accordingly. 
 
The Midtown Lofts project has moved past litigation. Closing is expected early Summer 2019. 
 
The Joinery has experienced budgetary setbacks due to unforeseen roof expenses. Staff met with Jon Bucklew 
to discuss. 
 
Steve Boyington presented a residential infill project for the Dixieland District.  
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Adjourned at 4:16 PM  
 
Next Meeting, Thursday, April 4th, 2019 3 PM, City Commission Conference Room.   
 
           
Ben Mundy, Chairman     Date 

17



 
Memo 
To:  CRA Advisory Board 
From:   Alis Drumgo, Interim CRA Manager 
Date:  March 28, 2019 
Re:  The Joinery Funding Request 

In April 2018, the CRA led an exploratory trip to Armature Work in Tampa to preview the elements of 
a high performing public space. While energy was high and attendees were optimistic, during a June 
recap discussion, the Board opted to divert from initial thoughts to utilize 717 N. Florida Ave. and 111 
E. Parker St. due to concerns regarding renovation costs and potential gentrification of the adjacent 
community. However, during the meeting, the Board was presented an opportunity to test the food hall 
concept at the old Lakeland Brewing Company. Commissioner Madden moved to approve the 
contribution to the buildout at a not to exceed of $250,000 which carried unanimously. 

Since June, Jon and Sarah Bucklew have secured a long-term ground lease and embarked upon 
renovations. Thus far, the total work has included: roof replacement, demo, painting, legal fees, 
branding and lease deposits. To date, the CRA has disbursed about $180k of the allocated grant. Now 
dubbed, “The Joinery”, the entrepreneurs have building permit in hand and have realized a significant 
budget increase from the initial estimates ranging between $670k-$930k. The total project cost 
ballooned to about $1.46 million. Subsequently, the operators met with Staff in February and early 
March to discuss project progress, and Staff recommended value-engineering of some components to 
reduce costs.  

After some material adjustments, the costs were estimated at about $1.31 million, so the Bucklews 
added an equity investor. However, the project is still short approximately $175k which is today’s 
request. Please be prepared to discuss. 

18



 
Memo 
To:  CRA Advisory Board 
From:   Alis Drumgo, Interim CRA Manager 
Date:  March 28, 2019 
Re:  912 & 920 N. Vermont Ave. 

In March 2018, at the urging of the CRA, the City acquired 834 N. Vermont Ave. (one single-family 
residence), 836 N. Vermont Ave. (vacant single family lot), 905 N. Vermont Ave. (four single-family 
residences), 912 and 920 N. Vermont Ave. (sixteen multi-family units). The properties were all under 
the ownership of one individual that had been identified as a troubled owner and repeat code 
enforcement violator. Issues of illegal dumping, criminal activity and homeless camping were pervasive 
on the property. In July 2018, the City deeded the properties to the CRA, and the CRA acted to mitigate 
the blight. The properties have been cleaned-up and boarded and are regularly monitored for trespassing 
with monthly carrying costs of $1,725. The properties currently have an assessed value of just over 
$160,000. 

During discussions at one of the Mayor’s Homelessness Steering Committee meetings, Dr. Reddout 
(Tablot House) expressed potential interest in the acquisition of some of the properties. Particularly, she 
mentioned the desire to convert 912 and 920 N. Vermont Ave. into sixteen affordable units with the 
intent to lease them as workforce and disabled housing. She added that Talbot House operates ten units 
of permanent supportive housing and twenty transitional units, but the length of stay is roughly four 
years due to shortage in affordable stock. Dr. Reddout sees the opportunity to provide wraparound 
services to clients while offering rents in the $250-$600 range. 

Dr. Reddout’s Board of Directors has reviewed and approved the pursuit of the project. She seeks the 
CRA’s donation of the property so she may seek funding from the following sources to complete the 
project: 

19



Funding Structure 

Affordable Home Loan Bank $400,000 

BB&T Bank $50,000 

SHP Funds $50,000 

Donations $100,000 

City of Lakeland/CRA $50,000 

Total Project Budget $650,000 

 

Should the CRA Advisory Board support the donation of the property and a $50,000 funding 
commitment, Staff would need to issue disposition of the property per statute and solicit other offers. 
Subsequently, the transaction would need to be approved by City Commission. Dr. Reddout expects the 
first tenant to move-in November 2020. Please be prepared to discuss the proposal. 

20



 
Memo 
To:  CRA Advisory Board 
From:  D’Ariel Reed, CRA Project Associate 
CC:   Alis Drumgo, Interim CRA Manager 
Date:  March 28, 2019 
Re:  Residential Incentives Transition 

Introduction 

In February 2016, the LCRA Advisory Board voted to approve the Fix-It Up Grant. The intent was to 
improve the neighborhoods by assisting existing homesteaders with essential exterior repairs and 
enhancements to their properties to improve the safety, value and aesthetics. In January 2018, Fix-It Up 
was modified to include a Level II to allow for a greater impact on the health and safety of residents by 
also accommodating interior renovations at a higher funding amount. In total, the CRA has improved 
fifty-three (53) houses with the Fix-It Up Program. 

In April 2016, the Homeowner’s Down Payment Assistance Grant was approved to stabilize the 
neighborhoods within the Midtown district by encouraging new homesteaders to purchase their new 
homes within the district. In April 2018, the Homeowner’s Down Payment Assistance Grant was 
modified to apply a maximum grant amount to better reflect affordability in the district and increase the 
overall budget to provide up to fifteen (15) grants per fiscal year. Since approval, the CRA has provided 
assistance to fifty-six (56) homestead buyers. 

In July 2018, the Builder’s Line of Credit Program was approved to provide an alternative financial 
resource for the construction of quality new homes on infill lots. The program is only offered to builders 
with a prequalified, contracted buyer. The CRA provides a maximum credit up to $150,000, and the 
line of credit must be settled upon closing of the home. 

21



The CRA has invested a total of $1,071,618.88 towards stabilizing the Midtown neighborhoods through 
the Fix-It Up and Homeowner’s Down Payment Assistance Grants alone. Due to the success and 
affordability relative to the other parts of the City, the demand for housing in Midtown has increased. 
In addition to demand, the real estate values in the district have risen 20%. 

Shifting Philosophy 

In looking at how the CRA may better serve the needs of the community, Staff has realized that similar 
services and programs are being provided, to an extent, by the City’s Housing Division. The main 
differences are that Housing Division’s programs are income restricted and focus more on internal 
repairs than exterior.  Particularly, review of Housing Division’s programs identified homeowners that 
fall within the range of 80% to 120% of AMI as the group most overlooked.  This range encompasses 
household incomes that fall between $30,050 and $95,194 depending on household size (see 
Attachment “B”). 

With new departmental leadership and a pursuit of efficiency, Staff views an opportunity to transition 
the administration of all residential grants to one office.  The transition allows for the perfect opportunity 
to layer CRA funds with Housing funds to fill a gap in the community by assisting those in the 80% to 
120% range as well as improving the houses internally and externally, thus focusing on overall quality 
of life.  Furthermore, Housing Staff can leverage resources through alternative bid processes, and has 
qualifications to inspect and evaluate housing projects proficiently. Attachment “A” is a table that 
outlines the combination of the grant programs and the process changes that will apply to each.  

During the annual retreat, the Board expressed the need for affordable housing.  The transition of 
residential grant administration will allow staff to focus attention on housing policy and reallocate some 
funding towards attracting affordable housing partners. 

Request 

Staff recommends transitioning the administration of CRA residential grants to the Housing Office in 
order to continue with our goals of providing affordable housing and stabilizing neighborhoods. Staff 
also recommends decreasing the Down Payment Assistance annual budget from $450,000 to $250,000 
to support the administration of twenty (20) grants at a lower funding level. The CRA will then allocate 
$250,000 annually to a revolving loan fund dedicated to the recruitment of large scale affordable 
housing projects in CRA districts with Housing Trust Group (HTG) being the first recipient of the 
dedicated funding in fiscal year 2022. With the shift in administration, the following will also be 
applicable: 

• Down payment assistance to provide funding for applicants up to 120% AMI 
• All recipients will attend Keystone Homeownership Course  
• Grant amounts will align with Housing’s disbursement practices 
• CRA will forego the purchase option and adopt 10-year lien (repayment of 100% in 

years 1-5 and 50% in years 6-10) 
 

Staff is not recommending any changes to the Fix-It Up program at this time; however, it’s 
administration will be transitioned to the Housing Office as well at the following funding amounts: 

22



• Fix-It Up: $200K (Midtown Target Areas) & $100K (Garden District) 
o Midtown: Maximum of two (2) Level II projects a year 

 
There is one active project under the new Builder’s Line of Credit Program and the estimated 
completion date is May 28, 2019. At time of closing, the builder will repay the grant funds. With the 
shift in philosophy, it is recommended Builder’s Line of Credit no longer be offered as the need to 
bundle lots in tandem with the City’s, to entice an affordable builder, will take precedent and expedite 
the infill process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23



Housing/LCRA Program Realignment 
Program CRA Housing Division Merged Format 

Home Purchase 
Assistance 

Down Payment 
Assistance 

Home Purchase Assistance 
$20,000 Ex/Very Low Income 

$12,000 Low Income 
$7,000 Moderate Income 

$2,000 Closing Cost 
$2,000 Processing Fee 

30-year Lien 

Housing Division assistance amounts remain the same. 
CRA Funds only in Midtown District & Garden District will only 

assist Moderate clients only; 
Keystone will process portfolio 
10-year lien (100% pay back in years 1-5 and 50% in years 6-10) 
$1,000 client’s contribution 

Housing 
Rehabilitation 

Fix-It Up Level I 
(Up to $5,000 as grant) 

Minor and/or Emergency Repairs 
($3,500 Max as grant) 

Complete remaining CRA list with the exception: if the cost exceeds 
$5,000, applicants have to apply via Housing Division process 

Future Applicants: 
No Application Fee 
CRA Funds only in Midtown (Target Areas) & Garden District 
CRA funds may assist up to 120% of AMI 
Housing increases minor/emergency repairs to $5,000 as grant 

Fix-It Up Level II 
(Up to $25.000 as 

grant) 

Minor to Major Rehabilitation 
Up to $75,000 

With deferred liens: 5, 10 & 15 years 
depending on amount of assistance 

No Application Fee 
CRA Funds only in Midtown (Target Areas) & Garden District 
CRA funds may assist up to 120% of AMI 
Deferred Lien will be less CRA funds of $25,000 max 
Deferred Lien terms will remain the same for Housing 

Re-Construction N/A Reconstruct home on owner’s lot 
(30 year deferred lien) No CRA funds provided; Housing 

New 
Construction 

Infill New Home 
Construction N/A 

No Application Fee 
Builder must have a buyer 
Buyer must present lending pre-approval 
Buyer must utilize Home Purchase Assistance 
Builder grant disbursed after construction and sale (10% of sale price 

up to $150,000) 

Builder’s Line of 
Credit N/A 

No Application Fee 
Builder must have a buyer 
Buyer must present lending pre-approval 
Buyer must utilize Home Purchase Assistance 
Builder’s credit must be paid in full at closing 
Builder’s grant disbursed after construction and sale (5% of sale price 

up to $150,000)  

24



 

25



���������	�
��������� ��������������������� �!����������

"�"#�$%	&�'
��(�)���� *+�,� ��-�.���/�*�������0�,1�,�����

233�4&56�
��(������ 7-�8�8,�/,��

9:;<:=>?@: A=<BC:�DECE>�FG�HICF:;�BJ�9:;KB=K�E=�LBIK:MBNO P:=>�DECE>�FG�HICF:;�BJ�Q:O;BBCK�E=�R=E>

SBI=>G�TU:>;BV S?>:@B;G W X Y Z [ \ ] ^ _ Ẁ ` W X Y Z [

aK<:BN?�SBI=>G bcd ebfghc eifgic jcfklc jhfecc jmfgjc bbfkgc blfcic gjfjcc nopoq�rs�tuv bbi bkb hem ile lgb efccb

wxqyz{|s}~������oo} [̀� XX�Z̀` X[�\̀` X̂�̂̀` YW�_[̀ YZ�[[̀ Y]�Ẁ` Y_�\[̀ ZX�X̀` ZZ�]Ỳ Z]�X̂\ [\̀ \̀` ]X̀ ŶW _X] W�̀XY

�z{psq|����� lcd bhflcc gcfmcc gifccc hefecc hhfjcc hmfbcc ibfgcc ikfhcc kefhil khfihl lmh mhl efehc efbjl efglj efibi

�o|�z{� ijfmcc WX̀� [Y�]\̀ \W�ZZ̀ \_�WX̀ ]\�\̂` X̂�_X̀ _̂�̀Z̀ _[�W\̀ ẀW�X̂` Ẁ]�Y[X WWY�Ẑ\ W�YZZ W�ZZ̀ W�]X̂ W�__[ X�XX\ X�Z[[

egcd ijfkjc kefilc lcfigc lmfgic mifkgc ecbfllc eeefcjc eelfeic ejhfjgg ebjfgce efhil efilc jfcei jfbjk jfhmk jflig

9?NC�Q:?<M�SBI=>G bcd eifehc elfghc jcfklc jhfecc jmfgjc bbfkgc blfcic gjfblc nopoq�rs�tuv gcb gbj hem ile lgb efcch

w���zy�����}�s�z�nzrs{�t���� [̀� X\�_[̀ Ỳ�̂̀` YZ�\[̀ Ŷ�Z[̀ ZW�[[̀ ZZ�\[̀ Z]�]̀` [̀�̂̀` [Y�̂Ỳ [\�_̀\ \]Y ]XW \̂\ W�̀̀` W�WW\ W�XYW

��z��}�r���z�|oq|zyo}�s��z{s������ lcd gbfchc gmfjcc hhfbhc iefhcc iifghc kefbhc kifbcc lefjcc lifejl mefchc efcki efehb efblb efhmm efklb efmil

�o|�z{� kgfbcc WX̀� \Z�\̂` ]Y�_X̀ Ŷ�W\̀ _X�X̂` __�]X̀ Ẁ]�W\̀ WWZ�Ẑ` WXW�_X̀ WX_�W_X WY\�[]Z W�\W] W�]YX X�̀]_ X�Z̀` X�\]_ X�_[[

egcd khfgic lifjgc mkfcjc eckfiic eeifbgc ejhfcjc ebbfhic egjfjgc ehcfkjg ehmfbbk eflli jfcje jfgjh jflcc bfejh bfggk

9?K<B�SBI=>G bcd ebfghc eifgic jcfklc jhfecc jmfgjc bbfkgc blfcic gjfjcc nopoq�rs�tuv bbi bkb hem ile lgb efccb

w�z��z}�r��oroq���q�} [̀� XX�Z̀` X[�\̀` X̂�̂̀` YW�_[̀ YZ�[[̀ Y]�Ẁ` Y_�\[̀ ZX�X̀` ZZ�]Ỳ Z]�X̂\ [\̀ \̀` ]X̀ ŶW _X] W�̀XY

�yozq�zroq����� lcd bhflcc gcfmcc gifccc hefecc hhfjcc hmfbcc ibfgcc ikfhcc kefhil khfihl lmh mhl efehc efbjl efglj efibi

�o|�z{� ibfmcc WX̀� [Y�]\̀ \W�ZZ̀ \_�WX̀ ]\�\̂` X̂�_X̀ _̂�̀Z̀ _[�W\̀ ẀW�X̂` Ẁ]�Y[X WWY�Ẑ\ W�YZZ W�ZZ̀ W�]X̂ W�__[ X�XX\ X�Z[[

egcd ijfkjc kefilc lcfigc lmfgic mifkgc ecbfllc eeefcjc eelfeic ejhfjgg ebjfgce efhil efilc jfcei jfbjk jfhmk jflig

9E=:NN?K�SBI=>G bcd ebfghc eifgic jcfklc jhfecc jmfgjc bbfkgc blfcic gjfjcc nopoq�rs�tuv bbi bkb hem ile lgb efccb

w�z��z}�r��oroq���q�} [̀� XX�Z̀` X[�\̀` X̂�̂̀` YW�_[̀ YZ�[[̀ Y]�Ẁ` Y_�\[̀ ZX�X̀` ZZ�]Ỳ Z]�X̂\ [\̀ \̀` ]X̀ ŶW _X] W�̀XY

�yozq�zroq����� lcd bhflcc gcfmcc gifccc hefecc hhfjcc hmfbcc ibfgcc ikfhcc kefhil khfihl lmh mhl efehc efbjl efglj efibi

�o|�z{� ibfmcc WX̀� [Y�]\̀ \W�ZZ̀ \_�WX̀ ]\�\̂` X̂�_X̀ _̂�̀Z̀ _[�W\̀ ẀW�X̂` Ẁ]�Y[X WWY�Ẑ\ W�YZZ W�ZZ̀ W�]X̂ W�__[ X�XX\ X�Z[[

egcd ijfkjc kefilc lcfigc lmfgic mifkgc ecbfllc eeefcjc eelfeic ejhfjgg ebjfgce efhil efilc jfcei jfbjk jfhmk jflig

9BN��SBI=>G bcd ejfegc eifgic jcfklc jhfecc jlfmhc befecc bbfjhc bhfgcc nopoq�rs�tuv bcb bhk hem ikh kkk lhl

w�z�oyz{|}��{roq�tz�o{����� [̀� Ŵ�̂̀` XW�Z[̀ XZ�W[̀ X\�̂̀` X̂�_[̀ YW�Ẁ` YY�X[̀ Y[�Z̀` Y]�[X̀ Y_�\\Z Z]̀ [̀Y \̀Y \_\ ]]] [̂̂

lcd bcfchc bgfbhc blfihc gjfmcc gifbhc gmflcc hbfjcc hifihc icfcbj ibfgij khe lch mii efeeh efjgh efbkb

�o|�z{� hbficc WX̀� Z[�WX̀ [W�Ẑ` []�_\̀ \Z�YX̀ \_�Ẑ` ]Z�\Z̀ ]_�̂̀` Ẑ�_\̀ _̀�̀Ẑ _[�W_Z W�WX̂ W�X̀] W�ZZ_ W�\]X W�̂\\ X�̀[_

egcd hjfigc icfcic ikfijc khfcgc lefcic lkfclc mbfecc mmfejc echfchi eeefchm efbei efgcl efimc efmhe jfekk jfgcj

9I>=?C�SBI=>G bcd ejfegc eifgic jcfklc jhfecc jlfehc bcfjhc bjfbhc bgfgcc nopoq�rs�tuv bcb bhk hem iih khi lbg

[̀� Ŵ�X[̀ X̀�̂[̀ XY�Z[̀ X\�̀[̀ X̂�W[̀ Ỳ�X[̀ YX�Y[̀ YZ�Z̀` Y\�Z]̀ Ŷ�[[Z Z[\ Ẑ^ [̂\ \]] ][\ ŶZ

lcd jmfjcc bbfgcc bkfhhc gefkcc ghfchc glfgcc hefkhc hhfchc hlfbhj iefili kbc klj mbl efclg efjec efbbh

�o|�z{� gjfmcc WX̀� ZY�̂̀` [̀�̀Z̀ [\�X̂` \X�[X̀ \]�[\̀ ]X�\̀` ]]�\Z̀ X̂�[\̀ ]̂�[X̂ _X�[Ỳ W�̀_[ W�W]Y W�Z̀] W�\X\ W�̂W[ X�̀̀X

egcd hefecc hlfblc ihfiic kjfmgc klfljc lgfkcc mcfhlc mifbjc ecjfeei eckfmhe efjkk efbil efige eflmk jfeek jfbbi

"�%�5'���%�	5���"5���4��#%��%��&5%�� "�"#¡�5�4%¢����'����&��5¢5&	�����£�	�'���%��35����	���%65'�'�£¤�&¥����5&�'�¦&�&�	������&¢��&�%3��%�	5�����'���£�����6��%�¢��&� ���¡���'�����

	�£§�4&�&%�4¥����̈����'�&�'�	4¥�'���	�©5���£����%65'�'�©¥���4¥����	�%44��̈

26

dreed
Highlight

dreed
Highlight


	Agenda Packet.pdf
	Agenda.pdf
	Budget Pie Chart.pdf
	Project Progression Report.pdf
	FY 2018 Financial Statements.pdf
	LCRA loan paydown schedules.pdf
	LCRA loan paydown schedules (001).pdf
	LCRA loan paydown schedules (002).pdf
	LCRA loan paydown schedules (003).pdf

	Minutes_Draft.pdf

	The Joinery Funding Request.pdf
	Vermont Properties.pdf
	Residential Incentives.pdf
	Residential Inventives
	Residential Incentives Transition Memo_Final

	2018 Florida Housing Rental Programs Limits_Polk Co.pdf



